
OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
TO THE ONTARIO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 
AGENDA 

 
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 25, 2012 AT 10:00 AM 

COMMUNITY CONFERENCE ROOMS #1 & #2  
CITY HALL, 303 EAST “B” STREET, ONTARIO, CA, 91764 

 

 

Call to order: 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Public Comment 

Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2012 

1. A Resolution Approving the Due Diligence Review for the Low and Moderate 
Income Housing Fund. 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE ONTARIO 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, APPROVING THE DUE 

DILIGENCE REVIEW FOR THE LOW AND MODERATE 

INCOME HOUSING FUND  

 

 

Oversight Board Member Comments 

Adjournment  



OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
TO THE ONTARIO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 
MINUTES 

 
THURSDAY, AUGUST 23, 2012 

(Not Official Until Approved) 

 
A meeting of the Oversight Board of the Successor Agency to the Ontario 
Redevelopment Agency was held on Thursday, August 23, 2012 in the Community 
Conference Rooms at Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA.  
 
Notice of said meeting was duly given in the time and manner prescribed by law.  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Al Boling called the Oversight Board Meeting to order at 10:00 a.m., and 
requested the Assistant City Clerk to call the roll. 
 
PRESENT: Board Members: Al Boling, Don Bertucci, Alex Espinoza,  
    Gene Koopman, Mary Jane Olhasso,  
     and Anita Undercoffer 
 
ABSENT:  Board Members: Jamie Richardson 
 
Also present were:  Economic Development Director John Andrews, Legal Counsel to 
the Successor Agency Elizabeth Hull, Redevelopment Manager Charity Hernandez and 
Assistant City Clerk Vicki Kasad.  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman Boling. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None. 

 
 

1. Approval of Minutes  
 
Approved Minutes for the Regular Meetings of June 28, 2012 and July 26, 2012.  
 
MOTION:  Moved by Board Member Bertucci, seconded by Vice Chair Olhasso 

to approve the minutes of June 28, 2012 and July 28, 2012, as presented.  The 

foregoing motion carried by unanimous vote with Richardson absent.  

 



Oversight Board of the Successor Agency to the Ontario Redevelopment Agency 
Meeting Minutes – August 23, 2012 

Page 2 of 6 

 

2. A Resolution Approving a Maintenance Services Agreement between the 
Successor Agency to the Ontario Redevelopment Agency and Brickman 
Corporation.  

 
Economic Development Director Andrews explained that this was a 
recommendation for a Professional Services Agreement with Brickman 
Corporation for Landscape and Property Maintenance on properties that were 
formerly Agency owned, and now City owned.   Board Member Bertucci inquired 
what happens with the cost for these properties in the future.  Economic 
Development Director indicated that it is anticipated that through property 
dispositions and developments the properties would be taken off the list for 
maintenance and the contract costs adjusted accordingly.   Board Member 
Koopman inquired if Brickman was the low bidder.   Staff indicated that they 
would have to report back as contracts are awarded based on responsiveness 
and cost.  Mr. Koopman further inquired if this company had been doing the work 
in the past, which Mr. Andrews confirmed.   Mr. Koopman indicated that it would 
be nice to see the other bidders’ information included in future reports.  Chairman 
Boling inquired if the contract had been reviewed with respect to previous 
contracts for consistency.   Economic Development Director Andrews confirmed 
that they had been reviewed. 
 
MOTION:  Moved by Board Member Koopman, seconded by Board Member 

Espinoza to adopt Resolution No. OOB-009 approving a Maintenance Services 

Agreement with Brickman Corporation for the on-going maintenance of real 

property formerly held by the Redevelopment Agency.   The foregoing motion 

carried by unanimous vote with Richardson absent.  

 
RESOLUTION NO. OOB-009 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE ONTARIO REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY APPROVING A MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH BRICKMAN CORPORATION 

 
3. A Resolution Approving a Professional Services Agreement between the 

Successor Agency to the Ontario Redevelopment Agency and Keyser-
Marston Associates, Inc.  

 
Economic Development Director Andrews explained that this was a 
recommendation for a Professional Services Agreement with a company known 
for doing economic analysis for redevelopment agencies and cities relative to 
development proposals.  He explained that as part of the requirements of the 
new redevelopment regulations, the Successor Agency will bring forth 
recommendations for the disposition of properties and/or their development.    He 



Oversight Board of the Successor Agency to the Ontario Redevelopment Agency 
Meeting Minutes – August 23, 2012 

Page 3 of 6 

 

further explained that Keyser-Marston provides independent review of anticipated 
development costs, and confirms the validity of any assumptions used in the 
development agreements.  He indicated that Keyser Marston has a track record 
of being extremely valuable and useful to public agencies as they evaluate 
property development plans.    
 
MOTION:  Moved by Vice Chair Olhasso, seconded by Board Member Bertucci 

to adopt Resolution No. OOB-010 approving a Professional Services Agreement 

with Keyser-Marston Inc. for on-going real estate and economic/fiscal analysis 

services.  The foregoing motion carried by unanimous vote with Richardson 

absent.  

 
RESOLUTION NO. OOB-010 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE ONTARIO REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH KEYSER MARSTON ASSOCIATES, INC.  

 
4. A Resolution Approving a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for the 

time period from January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2013. 
 

Economic Development Director Andrews explained that this item was the 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) for the period January 2013 
through June 2013.   He explained that staff had gone through the schedule to 
provide details on anticipated future costs and using the new state form include 
past obligations and costs.  Vice Chair Olhasso noted that some of the contracts 
which were previously included as past obligations, had now been scrubbed from 
the template on a go forward basis.   Economic Development Director Andrews 
indicated that reporting prior obligations was a requirement for this process 
based on the new format.   He further indicated that September 1, 2012 is the 
deadline to submit to the State, and noted that staff did send a draft to the State 
on Monday, followed by Council action on Tuesday to give it Successor Agency 
approval.   Vice Chair Olhasso commented that the project name “debt 
obligation” was a little confusing, but since this was a Department of Finance 
form, we had to use it.   She requested a status update on the Guasti and 
Piemonte projects.   Economic Development Director Andrews indicated that 
there are Owner Participation Agreements with Pannatoni for Piemonte and 
Oliver McMillan for Guasti, and those were listed as obligations under a 
cooperation agreement approved in February of last year.    He indicated that 
they had been carried forward to this report, noting that the prior ROPS were 
approved by the Department of Finance on May 30.  He commented that staff 
anticipates that there will be some questions from the Department of Finance 



Oversight Board of the Successor Agency to the Ontario Redevelopment Agency 
Meeting Minutes – August 23, 2012 

Page 4 of 6 

 

about those two projects and possibly others; and noted that staff is moving 
forward and will respond to Department of Finance questions as they arise.   

 
MOTION:  Moved by Vice Chair Olhasso, seconded by Board Member 

Undercoffer to adopt Resolution No. OOB-011 approving a Recognized 

Obligation Payment Schedule for the time period from January 1, 2013 through 

June 30, 2013. The foregoing motion carried by unanimous vote with Richardson 

absent.  

 
RESOLUTION NO. OOB-011 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE ONTARIO REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY APPROVING A RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT 
SCHEDULE FOR THE TIME PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2013, 
THROUGH JUNE 30, 2013, PURSUANT TO HEALTH AND 
SAFETY CODE SECTION 34177(I) 

 
5. A Resolution Approving the Sale of Real Property from the City of Ontario 

to Sea Partners, LLC. 
 

Economic Development Director Andrews detailed the location of the real 
property under discussion at the south-west corner of Holt and Bon View.   He 
explained that it is a long vacant site acquired by the Redevelopment Agency 
over ten years ago, and although the City and RDA attempted to market it to 
various users, they were never able to get past initial discussions.   He advised 
that Brent Ogden, with Sea Partners had developed other projects in the City, 
such as the center at 6th Street and Mountain Avenue, as well as others 
throughout Southern California.  Economic Development Director Andrews 
indicated that Sea Partners had brought an opportunity to develop a free 
standing Dollar General retail store.   He noted that the biggest challenge for this 
project is the site configuration, as the access is very tight and restricted. He 
advised that the agreed upon sale price was $5.25 per square foot.   He 
presented site plans and elevations for the proposed project, and noted that Sea 
Partners is prepared to start construction later this year.   Economic 
Development Director Andrews advised that this matter was presented to the 
City Council and unanimously approved on Tuesday, August 21, 2012.   He 
advised that after Oversight Board consideration the next step is for the 
Resolution to be forwarded to the Department of Finance, with a report that the 
land sale proceeds will be transmitted at the close of escrow.   Board Member 
Undercoffer questioned the agreement date, listed as February 15, 2012 in the 
agenda report, noting that it should have been done before 2011.  Legal Counsel 
Hull indicated that was a typographical error and should state February 15, 2011, 
which was prior to the adoption of AB26. 



Oversight Board of the Successor Agency to the Ontario Redevelopment Agency 
Meeting Minutes – August 23, 2012 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 
MOTION:  Moved by Board Member Bertucci, seconded by Board Member 

Koopman to adopt Resolution No. OOB-012 approving the sale of real property 

owned by the City of Ontario to Sea Partners, LLC. The foregoing motion carried 

by unanimous vote with Richardson absent.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. OOB-012 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE ONTARIO REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY APPROVING THE SALE OF REAL PROPERTY 
OWNED BY THE CITY OF ONTARIO TO SEA PARTNERS, LLC. 

 
6. Oversight Board Member Comments. 

 
Board Member Bertucci noted that the Chaffey Joint Union High School District 
took action at the end of July to put Measure P to a vote to allow for 
improvements at all district high schools to make them the best facilities that can 
be provided and improve infrastructure and technology.    
 
Board Member Espinoza indicated that he signed the Argument in Favor of 
Measure P, and stressed the future needs of the schools which could be 
addressed if Measure P passes.  
 
Economic Development Director Andrews noted that there is the possibility of a 
need for a special meeting in October.    Legal Counsel Hull clarified that it is a 
due diligence matter which would require consideration at two meetings.   Mr. 
Andrews also noted the possibility of another separate Disposition and 
Development Agreement which could require a special meeting in September.   
He indicated that staff would do their best to provide early notice if these 
meetings are required.  

 
7. Adjournment 

 
Chairman Boling adjourned the Oversight Board meeting at 10:21 a.m. to the 
next regularly scheduled meeting of September 27, 2012.  
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
OVERSIGHT BOARD SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 



Oversight Board of the Successor Agency to the Ontario Redevelopment Agency 
Meeting Minutes – August 23, 2012 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
AL C. BOLING, CHAIRMAN 
ONTARIO OVERSIGHT BOARD 



1     AGENDA ITEM 1 
 

OVERSIGHT BOARD 
FOR THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY  

TO THE ONTARIO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 

STAFF REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM 1 

 
 
Meeting Date: October 25, 2012 
 
Subject:  Low and Moderate Income Housing Due Diligence Review/Report.    
 
Recommended Action: 
 
That the Oversight Board of the Successor Agency to the Ontario Redevelopment 
Agency approve and adopt the attached Due Diligence Review of the Low and 
Moderate Income Housing Funds required pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 
34179.5. 
 

Background: 
 
On October 18, 2012, the Oversight Board met to take public comment on the Due 
Diligence Review of the Low and Moderate Income Housing Funds prepared pursuant 
to Health and Safety Code Section 34179.5.  No members of the public spoke on the 
item.   
 
AB 1484 requires that the Successor Agency hire a licensed accountant to complete a 
Due Diligence Review of unobligated balances in the Low and Moderate Income 
Housing Fund (“LMIHF”) and other funds for the former Ontario Redevelopment Agency 
(“Agency”).  A copy of the LMIHF Due Diligence Review (“DDR”) was to be submitted to 
the Oversight Board, County Auditor Controller, State Controller’s Office and the 
Department of Finance (“DOF”) by October 1, 2012. Due to the delay in finalizing 
procedures of this review between the DOF and audit firms the report was distributed on 
October 4, 2012.   
 
The purpose of the audit review is to determine the unobligated balances available for 
transfer to taxing entities, by undertaking a review of all assets of the former Agency 
and Successor Agency, including all transfers, cash balances, enforceable obligations, 
and assets, from January 1, 2011 to present.   
 
Since the public comment session has already taken place, pursuant to Health and 
Safety Code §34179.6(c), the Oversight Board must formally approve the Due Diligence 
Report for submission to DOF. Upon receipt by DOF, DOF will review the DDR and 
issue a final determination on the transfer of unobligated funds to the County Auditor-
Controller.  
  
 



2     AGENDA ITEM 1 
 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Pursuant to the Due Diligence Review no funds are available from the LMIHF to be 
remitted to the County of San Bernardino for disbursement to the affected taxing 
entities. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Due Diligence Review of the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund  
 
    



















































45774.40000\7623263.1  

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE SUCCESSOR 

AGENCY TO THE ONTARIO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, APPROVING 

THE DUE DILIGENCE REVIEW FOR THE LOW AND MODERATE INCOME 

HOUSING FUND  

 

 

WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code Section 34179.5 requires the Successor Agency to 

the Ontario Redevelopment Agency (“Successor Agency”) to hire a licensed accountant, 

approved by the County Auditor-Controller, to conduct a Due Diligence Review to determine the 

unobligated balances available for transfer to taxing entities; and 

 

WHEREAS, Lance Soll & Lunghard, LLP conducted a review of the Low and Moderate 

Income Housing Fund to meet the requirements of Section 34179.5, and prepared a Report on 

that review; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34179.6(a), by October 1, 

2012, the Successor Agency must provide the Oversight Board, County Auditor-Controller, State 

Controller, and the Department of Finance, the results of the Due Diligence Review of the Low 

and Moderate Income Housing Fund; and 

 

WHEREAS, following receipt of the Report, the Oversight Board is required to convene 

a public comment session, to be held not less than 5 business days prior to the approval vote by 

the Oversight Board; and 

 

WHEREAS, due to delays in the drafting of the Agreed Upon Audit Procedures and the 

ability of the auditor to complete the review the Successor Agency transmitted the draft Report 

to the required entities on October 4, 2012; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Oversight Board held the required public comment session on October 

18, 2012; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 34179.6 empowers the Oversight Board to authorize the Successor 

Agency to retain certain assets or funds, such as restricted funds, including bond or grant funds 

or cash funds that are required to fund an enforceable obligation, physical assets such as 

equipment or land; and funds to satisfy obligations that will be placed on the Recognized 

Obligation Payment Schedule for the current fiscal year; and 

 

WHEREAS, an oversight board that makes that authorization must identify to the 

Department of Finance the amount of funds authorized for retention, the source of those funds, 

and the purposes for which those funds are being retained; and 

 

WHEREAS, the determination and authorization to retain funds and assets is then 

subject to the review and approval of the Department of Finance.  

 



45774.40000\7623263.1  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE SUCCESSOR 

AGENCY TO THE ONTARIO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DOES HEREBY 

RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Recitals.  The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated into this Resolution by this reference. 

Section 2. CEQA Compliance.  The action of the Oversight Board to approve the 

Report on the Due Diligence Review, authorize the Successor Agency to retain certain assets and 

funds, and determine the cash and cash equivalents that are available for disbursement to the 

taxing entities does not commit the Oversight Board to any action that may have a significant 

effect on the environment. As a result, such action does not constitute a project subject to the 

requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act.   

Section 3. Approval of Due Diligence Review Report.  Following its review of the 

Report on the Due Diligence Review, and the public comments received during the public 

comment session held on the Due Diligence Review, and pursuant to Health and Safety Code 

Section 34179.6(c), the Oversight Board hereby approves the Report and authorizes the 

Successor Agency to retain those assets and funds in the Report. 

Section 4. Submittal to Department of Finance.  The Oversight Board hereby directs 

staff to submit to the Department of Finance and the County Auditor Controller a copy of the 

Report and the information on the cash and assets the Oversight Board has determined should be 

retained by the Successor Agency and the determination of the amount of cash and cash 

equivalents that are available for disbursement to taxing entities, as set forth in the Report. 

Section 5. Severability.  If any provision of this Resolution or the application of any 

such provision to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other 

provisions or applications of this Resolution that can be given effect without the invalid 

provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Resolution are severable.  The 

Oversight Board declares that the Oversight Board would have adopted this Resolution 

irrespective of the invalidity of any particular portion of this Resolution. 

Section 6. Certification.  The City Clerk of the City of Ontario acting on behalf of the 

Oversight Board as its Secretary, shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution. 

Section 7. Effective Date.  Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34179(h), all 

actions taken by the Oversight Board may be reviewed by the State of California Department of 

Finance, and, therefore, this Resolution shall not be effective for five (5) business days, pending 

a request for review by the State of California Department of Finance. 

  

 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this _______ day of October, 2012 by the 

following vote: 

 

 

 



45774.40000\7623263.1  

AYES: 

 

NOES: 

 

ABSENT: 

 

ABSTAIN: 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Oversight Board Chairperson 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Oversight Board Secretary 




